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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT 

The Honorable Sherbin Collette, Mayor 
and Members ofthe Town Council 

Town ofHenderson, Louisiana 

Report on the Audit ofthe Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the aeeompanying fmancial statements of the governinental activities, the business-
type aetivities, each major firnd, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Henderson, 
Louisiana, as of anð for the year ended June 3 0, 2022, and the related notes to the finaneial statements, which 
eolleetively eomprise the Town of Henderson, Louisianas basic finaneial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position ofthe govermnental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining funcl information ofthe Town ofHenderson, Louisiana, as ofJune 30, 2022, and the 
respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordanee with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Bisisfor Opinioiis 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to flnancial audits contained in Government Aud/ting Standads, 
issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United States. Our responsibilities uncler those standards are further 
described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finaneial Statements seetion of our report. We 
are requireð to be indepenclent of the Town of Henderson, Louisiana and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our auðit. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Change in Accounting Principle 

As deseribed in Note 21 to the flnancial statements, in 2022, the Town of Henderson, Louisiana 
adopted new aecounting guidance, GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. Our opinion is not modifled with respect 
to this matter. 

Mernber of: .1 Member of: 
AMERICAN INSTPTUTE OF SOClETr OF LOUISIANA 
CERTPFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



Responsibililies ofMaJ7agementfor tlze Finaizcial Stcitements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica, and for the design, 
implementation, aad maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statemellts, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town of Henderson, 
Louisianas ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the fmancial statement date, 
including any currently known information that inay raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Audìtors Responsibilitiesfor tlze Audit oftlze Fincincial Stateinents 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that 
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high Ieve1 of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards 
and Government Auditing Standards will always deteet a material misstatement when it exists. The risk ofnot 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from ei-ror, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgeiy, intentionat omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material ifthere is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, 
they would influence thejudgment made by a reasonable user based on the finaneial statements. 

In performing an audit in aecordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Governrnent 
Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professionaljudgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identitÿ and assess the risks of material misstatement ofthe financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but nt for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness ofthe Town ofHenderson, Louisianas internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

• Bvaluate the appropriateness of accounting polieies used and the reasonableness of signifieant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
finaneial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, tliat 
raise substantial doubt about the Town of Henderson, Louisianas ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period oftime. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 



¡?equired Suppe,nen1wy Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the bucfgetary 
comparison inforrnatiori and notes to the required supp1ementary information on pages 38 through 40 be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management 
and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain lirn ited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in aceordance with auditing stancfards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency wíth managements responses to our 
inquiries, the basie financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
finaneial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurancc on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

1vIanagement has omitted the managements discussion and analysis that accounting principles 
general!y accepted in the United States of America requires to be presented to supplement the hasie financial 
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Goveinmental Accouiiting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historieal context. Our 
opinioii on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 

Supp!enzentry Inforrnaiion 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financiai statements that 
collectively comprise the Town of Henderson, Louisianas basic financial statements, T11e Justice System 
Funding Reporting Schedules (reporting schedules) were created by Aet 87 of the Louisiana 2020 Regular 
Legislative Session. These reporting schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibi!ity of management and was 
derived frofll and relates directly to the underlying aceounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. The ¡nforrnation has been subjected to the auditing procedures app1ied in the audit ofthe 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reeonciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. n our Opinion, the reporting schedules 
are fairly stated in all material respects, in ie!ation to the basie financial statements as a whole. 

Oiher Izzforrnatioíz 

Management is responsible for the other information ineluded in the annual repoit. The othei 
information compiises the sehedu1e of insurance in foree, schedule of number of sewer customers and rates, 
and schedule ofaged accounts receivable but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditors 
report thereon, Our opinions on tlie basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we clo 
not express an opinion or aiiy form of assurance thereon. 

In conneetion with our audit of tlle basie financial statements, our responsibility is to iead the other 
information and eonsider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic 
financial statements, or the otlier information 0t11erwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 
work performed, we conclude that an uncoiTected material misstatement of the other information exists, we 
are required to describc it in our report. 



Other Reporting Required by GovernrnenðAiiditing Standards 

In accordance with Goverrnnent Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 6, 
2022, on our consideration of the Town of Henderson, Louisianas internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests ofits compliance with certain provisions oflaws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other rnattcrs. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Town of Henderson, Louisianas internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering Town of Henderson, Louisiana s intemal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

Champagne & Comprny, LLC 
Certified Public Accountants 

Breaux Bridge, Louisiana 
October 6, 2022 



BASIC FLNANCIAL STATEMENTS 



GOVFRNMENT-WID 
FINANCIAL STAT1MJNTS (GWFS) 



TOWN OF HENDERSON, LOUISIANA 

Statement ofNet Position 
June 30, 2022 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activìties Total 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and interest bearing deposits 
Aceounts receivable 
Sales tax reeeivable 
Due from other governmental uriits 
Prepaid items 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted cash 
Capital assets, net 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

LJABILIT[ES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts, salaries and other payables 
Accrued interest payable 
Bonds payable 
Financed purehase liability 
Compensated absences payable 
Unearnedrevenue 

Total current IiabiIities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Financed purchase liability 
Bonds payable 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLC)WS OF RESOURCES 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Uurestricted 

Total net position  

$ 4,597,368 $ 47,135 $ 4,644,503 
36,359 30,412 66,771 
57,636 - 57,636 
72,371 - 72,371 
8,005 - 8,005 

4,771,739 77,547 4,849,286 

- 90,426 90,426 
2,984,567 3,363,534 6,348,101 

2,984,567 3,453,960 6,438,527 

7,756,306 3,531,507 11,287,813 

126,597 9,229 135,826 
8,605 - 8,605 

57,000 58,025 115,025 
21,092 - 21,092 
3,155 - 3,155 

269,243 - 269,243 

485,692 67,254 552,946 

22,432 - 22,432 
609,000 928,346 1,537,346 

631,432 928,346 1,559,778 

1,117,124 995,600 2,112,724 

2,941,043 2,435,188 5,376,231 
- 32,401 32,401 

3,698,139 68,318 3,766,457 

$6,639,182 $ 2,535,907 $ 9,175,089 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic fmanciai statements. 
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FUND FLINANCJAJ STATEENTS (FFS) 



FUND DESCRIPTIONS 

MAJOR FUNDS 
General Fund 

The General Fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with governments which are not 
required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Special Revenue Fund 

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures 
for particular .purposes. 

Sales TaxFund - 
To account for the receipt and use of proceeds of the Towns 1 % saTes and use tax approved in a special 
election in June 1972 and rededicated in April of 2016. These taxes are dedicated for the purpose of 
constructing, acquiring, improving, operating and maintaining public streets, including incidental drainage, 
parks and recreational facilities, public buildings, and sewage collection and disposal system, including 
land, equipment, fixtures and furnishings for said purposes and, maintaining and operating garbage and 
solid waste eollection and disposal faeilitics. 

Enterprise Fund 

Utility Fund - 
To account for the provision of wastewater services to residents of the Town and operations of the 
wastewater plant. 

NONMAJOR FUNÐS 

Debt Service Fund - 
To account for the payment ofthe principal and interest ofthe Series 2016 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds. 

Park Fund - 
To account foi the revenues from park usage fees and expenses for maintaining the park. 

10 



TOWN OF HENDERSON, LOUISIANA 

Balance Sheet 
Governrnental Funds 

June 30, 2022 

Sales Tax îotai 
Special Nonmajor Governmental 

General Revenue Funds Funds 

ASSETS 

Cash and interest bearing deposits 
Accounts receivable 
Sales tax receivable 
Due from other governments 
Prepaid items 

Total assets  

$3,287,331 $1,191,968 $ 118,069 $ 4,597,368 
24,892 11,467 - 36,359 

- 57,636 - 57,636 
72,371 - - 72,371 

8,005 - - 8,005 

$3,392,599 $1,261,071 $ 118,069 $ 4,771,739 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and other liabilities 
Payroll liabilities 
Contract payable 
Retainage payable 
Unearned revenue 

Totai liabilities  

$ 45,105 $ 14,681 $ 
863 176 

26,108 - 
38,933 - 

269,243 - - 
380,252 14,857 -  

$ 60,467 
1,089 

26,108 
38,933 

269,243 

395,840 

681 
50 

73 1 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

îotal fund balance 

Total liabilities and fund balance  

8,005 

3,004,342 

3,012,347  

- - 8,005 
1,246,214 117,338 1,363,552 

- - 3,004,342 

1,246,214 117,338 4,375,899 

$3,392,599 $1,261,071 $ 118,069 $ 4,771,739 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe basic financial statements. 
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TOWN OF HENDERSON, LOUISIANA 

Reconciliation ofthe üovernmental Funcls Balance Sheet 
to the Statement ofNet Position 

June 30, 2022 

îotal fund balance for governmental ftinds at June 30, 2022 

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of net 
position is different because: 

capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of: 

Land 
Construction in progress 
Buildings and improvements, net of$186168 accumulated depreciation 
Autos and equipment, net of $351,599 accumulated depreciation 
Autos and equipment - financedpurchase, net of$90,823 accumulated depreciation 
Streets and improvements, net of $65 7,448 accumulated depreciati on 
Parks and facilities, net of$275,782 accumulated depreciation 

Office equipment, net of$23,859 accumulated depreeiation 

General Iong-term debt of governmental activities is not payable from 
current resources and, therefore, not reported in the funds. This debt is: 

Bonds payable and underlying accrued interest 
Financed purchase liability 

Compensated absences payable 

$4,375,899 

$ 56,000 
1,000,889 

42,447 
226,858 

84,684 
1,181,093 

391,426 
1,170 2,984,567 

(674,605) 
(43,524) 

- (3,155) (72 1,284) 

Total net position of governmental activities at June 30, 2022 $6,639,182 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe basic financial statements. 
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TOWN OF 1-ENDERSON, LOUISIAA 

Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances-

 

Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Sales Tax 
special Nonmajor 

General Revenue Funds Total 

$ 120,267 $ 582,231 $ - $ 702,498 
68,295 - - 68,295 
63,240 - 63,240 
9,278 - 9,278 

534,923 - - 534,923 
2,00,270 - - 2,007,270 

- 125,704 125,704 
11,124 - - 11,124 
4,787 1,406 - 6,193 
- - 2,949 2,949 
- - 24,480 24,480 

2,8 19, 184 709,341 27,429 3,555,954 

322,537 90,777 - 413,314 
- 126,733 - 126,733 

1,124,818 - - 1,124,818 
- - 19,416 19,416 

23,856 - 55,000 78,856 
2 - 21,263 21,265 

963,872 - 20,827 984,699 

2,435,085 217,5 10 116,506 2,769,101 

384,099 491,831 786,853 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Federal grants 
Intergovernmenta1 
State funds 
Fines and forfeitures 
Fees 

tisce11aneous 
Investment income 
Donation revenue 
Park revenue 

Total revenues 

Bxpenditures: 
Current - 

General governrnent 
Sanitation 
Public safety 
Park and recreation 

Debt service - principal 
Debt service - interest 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Financed purchase proceeds 67,380 - 67,380 
Operating transfers in - - 77,589 77,589 

Operating transfers out (2,943) (173,589) - (176,532) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 64,437 (173,589) 77,589 (3 1,563) 

Net chauge in fund balance 448,536 318,242 (11,488) 755,290 

Fund balance, beginning 2,563,8.1 1 927,972 128,826 3,620,609 

Fund balance, ending $3,012,347 $1,246,214 $ 117,338 $ 4,375,899 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe basic financial statements. 
13 



TOWN OF HENDERSON, LOUISIANA 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenclitures, and 

Changes in Fund Balances ofGovernmental Funds 
to the Statements of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 3 0, 2022 

îotal net change in fiind balance for the year ended June 30, 2022 per 

Staternent ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the 
statemerit ofactivities is different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, 
in the statement ofactivities, the cost ofthose assets is allocated over 

their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 
Capital outlay which is considered expenditures on Statement 

of Revenues, Experiditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2022 

Expenses not recuiring the use of current financial resources and 
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds: 

Net change in bonds payable and accrued interest 
Net change in financed purchase liability 

Total change in net position for the year ended June 30, 2022 
per Staternent ofActivities 

$ 755,290 

$ 984,699 
(142,746) 841,953 

55,508 
(43,524) 11,984 

$ 1,609,227 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe basìc financial statements. 
14 



TOWN OF HENDERSON, LOUTSLAA 

Statement ofNet Position 
Proprietary Fund 

June 30, 2022 

ASSBTS 
Current assets: 

Cash 

Aceounts receivabíe 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted cash 

Capital assets 

Total noncurrent assets 

îotal assets 

DEFBRRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

L]ÄB]IL1T1ES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and payroll liabilities 

Bonds payable 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Bonds payable 

Total liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 

Urirestrieted 

Total net position 

The accompanyirig notes are an integral part ofthe basic financial statements. 
15 

$ 47,135 
30,412 

77,547 

90,426 
3,363,534 

3,453,960 

3,531,507 

9,229 
58,025 

67,254 

- 928,346 

995,600 

2,435,188 
32,401 
68,3 18 

$2,535,907 



TOWN OF HENDERSON, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position - 
Proprietary Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services - 

Sewer service charges 

Total operating revenue 

Operating expenses: 
Administrative fees 
Contract labor 
Supplies, repairs and maintenance 
Professional fees 
Depreciation 
Testing and inspection fees 
Utilities 
Waste disposal fees 
Salaries 
Payroll expenses 

vtisce11aneous 

Total operating expenses 

Operating loss 

Non-operating revenues (expenses): 
Interest expense 

Misceilaneous income 

Total non-operating expenses 

Loss before transfers 

Transfers in 

Change in net position 

Net position, beginning 

Net position, ending 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe basic financial statements. 
16 

$ 201,678 

201,678 

1,165 
33,600 

118,700 
2,945 

259,939 
4,412 

15,268 
1,500 
4,500 

347 
2,835 

445,211 

(243,533) 

(40,244) 
10,675 

(29,569) 

(273, 102) 

98,943 

(174,159) 

2,7 10,066 

$ 2,535,907 



TOWN OF HENDERSON, LOUIS[ANA 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Receipts from customers 
Payments to suppliers 

Payments to employees 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activìties: 
Other receipts 

Transfers in 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 

Cash flows from capital and related fina.ncing activities: 
Interest paid on bonds & notes payable 
Principal paid on borids & notes payable 

Acquisition of capital assets 

Net cash usecl by capital and related financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 

$ 202,367 
(178,295) 

- (4,500) 

- 19,572 

10,675 
98,943 

109,618 

(40,244) 
(56129) 
(48,957) 

(145,330) 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (16,140) 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning ofperiod 153,701 

Casli and cash equivalents, end ofperiod $137,561 

(continued) 
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TOWN OF HENDBRSON, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Fund (continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by 

operating activities: 
Cash flows from operating aetivities 

Operating loss $ (243,533) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash provided 

by operating activities-

 

Depreciation 
Changes in current assets & liabilities: 

Decrease in accounts receivable 

Increase in accounts payable 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

259,939 

689 
2,477 

263,105 

$ 19,572 

Tlie accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe basic financial statements. 
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TOWN OF HENDERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

(1) Summary of Significant Accountig Policies 

The Town ofHenderson, Louisiana (the ttTownit)  was incorporated in March 1971, under the 
provisions of the Lawrason Act, State of Louisiana. The Town operates under a Mayor-Town 
Council form of government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter; public 
safety (police and fire), streets, sanitation, health and social services, culture and recreation, public 
improvements, planning and zonìng, and general• administrative services. 

The accounting and reporting practices of the Town of Henderson conform to generally 
aecepted aceounting principles as applieable to governmental units on a consistent basis between 
periods. Such accounting and repot-ting procedures also conform to the requirements of Louisiana 
Revised Statutes 24:5 17 and to the guides set forth in the industry audit guiðe, Aidits ofState and 
Local Governrnental Units, published by the American Institute of Certified public Accountants. The 
Towns reporting entity applies all relevant Governmental Aecounting Standards Board (GASB) 
pronouneements. 

The Town Council is composed of five (5) membcrs, duly eleeted by the citizens of the 
Town. The Town is Jocated in the Northeast section of St. Martin Parish and has approximately 
1,600 persons living within the town limits. 

The following is a summary ofcertain significant accounting policies: 

A. Financial Reorting Entity 

As the munieipal governing authority, for reporting purposes, the Town of 
Henderson is considered a separate financial reporting entity. The finaneial reporting 
entity consists of (a) the primary governnient (municipality), (b) organizations for 
which the primary government is fmaneially aecountable, anð (c) other organizations 
for which nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are 
such that cxelusion woulð cause the reporting entitys fmancial statements to be 
misleading or incomplete. The Town has no component units as deseribed in (b) and 
(c) above. 

The accompanying fmancial statements of the Town of Henderson (Town) have 
been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) 
generally accepted in the United Statcs of Arnerica as applied to governrnental units. 
GAAP includes all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
pronounecments. GASB is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial rcporting priiiciples. The accountìng and 
reporting framework and the more significant accounting policies are discussed in 
subsequcnt subsections ofthis note. 

The Town of Henderson has no authority over, nor is it involved in the record 
keeping of the Henclerson Volunteer Firc Department; therefore, the Department is not 
considered to be a component unit of the Town and accordingly, is not ineluded in the 
Towns auditcd financial statements. 
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TOWN OF HENDERSON, LOUSIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

B. Basis ofPresentation 

Government-Wide Financial Statements (GWFS) 

The statement of net position and statement of activities display information 
about the reporting government as a whoje. They include all funds of the reporting 
entity. The statements distinguish between governmental and business-type aetivities. 
Governmental activities generally are finaneed through taxes, intergovernmental 
revenues, and other nonexchange revenues. Business-lype activities are financed in 
whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or serviccs. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between diiect cxpenses and 
program revenues for the business-type activities of the Town and for each function of 
the Towns governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifieally 
associated witli. a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a 
particular function. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paið by the 
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs, and (b) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular program, Revenues that ai•e not classified as program revenues, including all 
taxes, are presented as gencral revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The accounts of the Town are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A 
fund is an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a separate set of self-balancing 
accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is 
used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and 
contractual provisions. The minimum nuinber of funcls is rnaintainecl consistent with 
legal and managerial requirements. 

The various funds ofthe Town are classified into two categories: governmental 
and proprietary (enterprise). The emphasis on fund financial statements is on major 
governmental and enterprise funds, each clisplayed in a separate column. A fund is 
considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the Town or meets the folJowing 
criteria: 

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenscs of 
that individual governmental or enterprise fund arc at least 10 
percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category 
ortype;and 

Total assets, Iiabi1ities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses ofthe 
individual governmental or enterprise fund are at Ieast 5 percent 
of the corresponding total for all governmental and cnterprise 
funds combined. 



TOWN OF HENDERSON, LOTJISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Staternents (Continued) 

Several funds ofthe Town are considered to be major funds and are described below: 

Governmental Fund Types-

 

General Fund 

The General Funð is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to 
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another 
fund. 

Special Revenue Fund — 

Sales Tax Fund 

To account for the receipt and use of proceeds of the Town1s 1 % sales and use 
tax approved in a special election in Juiie 1972 and reðedicated in April of2016. These 
taxes are dedicated for the purpose of constructing, acquiring, improving, operating and 
maintaining public streets, including incidental drainage, parks and recreational 
facilities, public buildings, and sewage collection and disposal system, including land, 
equipment, fixtures and furnishings for said purposes and, maintaining and operating 
garbage and solid waste collection and disposal facilities. 

Proprietary Fund Type 

Enterprise Fund 

Enterprise funcls are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and 
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the 
governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods 
or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided the 
periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, ancllor net income is 
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, 
or other purposes. Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from 
nonoperating items. Operating revenues are derived from charges for services. AII 
other revenues are reported as nonoperating. The Town appiies all applicable principles 
under the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in accounting and 
reporting for its enterprise fund. The Towns enterprise fund is the Utility Fund. 

The Towns nonmajor funds are described below: 

Debt Service Fund 

To account for the payment of the principal and interest of the Series 2016 
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds. 

Park Fund 

To account for the revenues for pai•k usage fees and expenses for maintaining 
the park. 
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TOWN OF HENDBRSON, IOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

C. Measurement Focus/Basis ofAccouiitiig 

Measurement focus is a tenn used to describe which transactions are 
recorded within the various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to when 
transactions are recorded regardless ofthe measurement focus applied. 

.Measurement Focus 

On the government-wide statement of net position and the statement of 
activities, both governmental and business-type aetivities are presented using the 
economic resources measurement focus as defined in item b. below. 

In the fund financial statements, the current financial resources measurement 
focus or the economic resources measurement focus is used as appropriate: 

a. A11 governmental funds utilize a current financial resources 
measurement focus. ünly eurrent financial assets and liabilities are 
generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating statements 
present soui•ces and uses of available spendable finaneial resources 
during a given period. These funds use funcl balance as their measure 
ofavailable spendable financial resources at the erid ofthe period. 

b. The proprietary fund utilizes an economic resources measurement 
focus. The accounting obectives of this measurement focus are the 
determination of operating income, changes in net position (or eost 
recovery), financial position, and eash flows. A11 assets and liabilities 
(whether current or noncurrent) assoeiated with their aetivities are 
reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net position. 

Basis ofAccounting 

In the government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities, 
goverrtmental and business-type aetivities are presented using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities and ðeferred inflows of resources resulting from exchange and exchange-like 
transactions are reeognized when the exchange takes place. Revenues, expenses, gains, 
losses, assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources resulting from nonexchange transactions are recognized in aecordance with 
the requirements of GASB Statement No. 33 Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Nonexchange Transactions. 

In the fund finaneial statements, governmental fiinds are presented on the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, 
revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Measurable mcans knowing 
or being ablc to reasonably estìmate the amount. Available means collectible within 60 
days of the end of the fiscal year. Expenditures (ineluding capital outlay) are recorded 
when the related fund liability is incurred, except for gencral obligation bond principal 
and interest which are reported when due. The accounting and financial reporting 
treatment applied to a fund is deterrnined by its measurernent focus. Operating 
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TOWN OF HENDERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) 
and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net total position. Ad 
valorem taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are budgeted, that 
is in the year they are billed and collected. Other major revenues considered 
susceptible to acerual are eamed grant revenues. 

Proprietary fund-type operating statements present increases (e.g. revenues) 
and decreases (e.g. expenses) in net total position. The proprietary fund utilizes the 
accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of aecounting, revenues are 
recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or 
economic asset used. 

D. Ats,Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Eguity 

Cash and interest-bearing deposits 

For purposes of the Staternent of Net Position, cash and interest-bearing 
deposits include all demand accounts of the Town. For the purpose of the proprietary 
fund Statement of Cash Flows, cash and eash equivalents include all demand and 
savings accounts, and certificates of deposit or short-term investments with an original 
maturity ofthree months or less. See Notc (2) for additionai diselosures. 

Interfund receivables and payables 

During the course of operations, numerous transaetions occur between 
individual funds that may result in amounts owed between funds. Those related to 
goods and services type transactions are classified as due to and from other flmds. 
Short-tenn interfund loans are reported as interfund receivables and payables. Long-
term interfund 1oans (noncurrent portion) are reported as advances from and to other 
funds. Interfund receivables ancl payables between funds within govemmental 
aetivities are eliminated in the Statement ofNet Position. 

Reeeivables 

In the govemment-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned 
at year-end and not yet received. 

Prepaid Items 

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 
30, 2022 are recorded as prepaid items. The only prepaid item that existed at June 30, 
2022 was prepaid insuranee. 

Restricted Assets 

Restrieted assets include cash and interest-bearing deposits of the proprietary 
fund that are legally restrieted as to their use. The restrieted assets are related to cash 
comprising of the following: sinking fund, renewal and replacement fund, and reserve 
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TOWN OF I-IENDERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basie Financial Statements (Coiitinued) 

fund. These enterprise fund cash accounts are restricted for future payments on long-
teim debt. 

Capital Assets 

The accounting treatment for buildings, improvements and equipment (capital 
assets) depends on whether they are reported in the governrnent-wide or funð financial 
statements. 

ln the government-wide financial statements, capital assets are capitalized at 
historical eost, or estimated historìcal cost if actual is unavailable, except for donated 
fixed assets, which are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. 
Interest costs are capitalized as they relate to fixed assets. The Town maintains a 
threshold level of$1,000 or more for capitalizing capital assets. 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated 
expense in the Statement of Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the 
Statement of Net Position. Depreciation is provicled over the assets estimated useful 
lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. Land and construction in progress 
are not ðepreeiated. The range ofestimated useful lives by type ofasset is as follows: 

]3ui1dings and improvements 2 0-40 years 
Sewer distribution system 25 years 
Equipment and vehicles 3-10 years 
Infrastructure 10-40 years 

In the fund financial statements, capital assets üsed in governmental fund 
operations are accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund 
upon aequisition. Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for 
the same as in the government-wide statements. 

Prior to the adoption of GASB 34, it was the Towns poliey not to record 
infrastructure; therefore, the Town did not have a complete listing of infrastructure. 
However, through the years, a partial list of infrastructure was maintained. The Town 
has opted not to do a detailed analysis of existing infrastructure. Rather, we will 
include the infrastructure for which we do have cost information available, and begin 
aceumulating inftastructure information prospectively. 

Compensated Absences 

Vaeation and sic1. leave are awarded on a calenðar year basis and cannot be 
calTied over to the next year. Fu11- time employees of the Town earn from 5 to 10 days 
of noncumulative vacation leave, depending upon length of service. An employee may 
accept payment in lieu of ta1ing actual vacation time, with the approval of the ayor 
and the Town Council. Upon termination, all unused vacation time within the calendar 
year is payable at the hourly rate being eamed by that employee at separation, with the 
exception of the police officers. The policy for the police officers for the Town is no 
vacation time is paið upon termination. 
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TO OF HENDERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Fu11-time employees ofthe Town earn from 9 to 12 days ofnoncumulative sick 
leave eaeh year, depending upon Iength of service. No sick leave is paid upon 
termination. 

Unearned revenue 
Revenue received that has not been spent is recorded as unearned revenue. 

Unearned revenue as of .June 30, 2022, was grant funds from the American Rescue 
Plan Act (ARPA). 

Long-term debt 
A11 long-term debt to be i•epaid from governmental and business-type funds is 

reported as liabilities in the governrnent-wide statements. The long-terrn debt consists 
of bonds payable and financed purchase liability. 

Long-term debt for governmentaf funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund 
financial statements. The debt is reported as other financing sources and payment of 
principal and interest reported as expenditures. 

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
In some instances, the GASB requires a government to delay recognition of 

decreases in net position as expenditures until a future period. In other instances, 
governments are required to delay recognition of increases in net position as revenues 
until a future period. in these circumstances, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of i•esourees result from the delayed recognition of expenditares or 
revenues, respectively. 

Equity Classifications 
In the government-wide statements, equity is classified as net position and 

displayed in three components: 
a. Net investrnent in capital assets — Consists of capitaf assets 

including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreeiation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings and deferred 
inflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets. 

b. Restricted net position Consists of restricted assets reduced by 
Iiabi1ities and deferred inflows of resourees related to those 
assets. Constraints may be placed on the use, either by (1) 
external groups, sueh as creditors, grantors, eontributors, or laws 
or regulations of other governments; or (2) law through 
constitutional p1.ovisions or enabling legislation. 

c. Unrestricted net position — Net amount of the assets, deferred 
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of 
resourees that are not ineluded in either of the other two 
categories ofnet position. 

In the fund finaneial statements, governmental fund equity is classified as fund 
balance. Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide 
statements. 



$ 8,005 $ - $ 

- 1,246,214 

Nonspendable: 
Prepaid items 

Restricted: 
Sales tax 
Parlc maintenance 
Debt service 

Committed: 

Assigned: 

- $ 8,005 

- 1,246,214 
44,314 44,314 
73,024 73,024 

TOWN OF I]ENDERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continuecl) 

Nonspendable amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in 
nonspendable form or because they are legally or contractually required to be 
maintained intact. 

Restricted — amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or because of constraints that 
are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or 
regulations of other governments. 

Coinrnitted — amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined 
by a formal action of the Town Council. The Council is the highest level of 
decision-malcing authority for the Town. Commitments may be established, 
modified, or rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions approved by 
Council members. 

Assigned— amounts that do not meet the críteria to be classified as restricted or 
committed but that are intended to be used for specific purposes. Under the 
Towns adopted policy, only Council members or the Mayor may assign 
amounts for specifie purposes. 

Unassigned— all other spendable arnounts. 

As ofJune 30, 2022, firncl balances are composed ofthe following: 

Nonmajor Total 
General Sales Tax Governmental Governmental 

Fund Fund Fund Funds 

Unassigned: 3,004,342 - - 3,004,342 

$ 3,012,347 $ 1,246,214 $ l 17,338 $ 4,375,899 

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and 
unrestricted fund balance is available, the Town considers restricted funds to have been 
spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or 

26 



TOWN OF HENDERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

unassigned fund balances are available, the Town considers amounts to have bcen 
spent first out of conimitted funds, then assigned fiinds, and finally unassigned funds, 
as needed, unless Council members have providecl otherwise in its commitment or 
assignment actions. 

E. Use ofEstimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conforrnity with generally 
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reportcd amounts ofassets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date ofthe financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenucs and expenditures ciuring the reporting period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

(2) Cash and interest-bearingpits 

Under state law, the Town may deposit funds within a fiseal agent bank organized under the 
laws of the State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state in the Union, or the laws of the United 
States. The Town may invest in certificates and time deposits of state banks organized under 
Louisiana law and national banks having principal offices in Louisiana. At June 30, 2022, the Town 
has cash and interest-bearing deposits (book balances) totating $4,734,929. 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of the failure of a depository 
financial institution, the Towns deposits may not be recovcred or will not be able to recover the 
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Thesc deposits are stated at cost, 
which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be 
secured by federal deposit insurancc or the pledge of securities owned by the pledging financial 
institution. The market value of the pledged sccurities plus the federal deposit ¡nsorance inust at all 
times equal the amount on deposit within the financial institution. These securities are held in the 
name of the pledging financial institution in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to 
both parties. Deposit balances (bank balances) at June 30, 2022 are secured as follows: 

Bank balances 

At June 30, 2022 the deposits are secured as follows: 

Federal deposit insurance 
pledged securities 

Total 

$ 4,766,358 

$ 500,000 
4,266,3 5 8 

$4,766,358 

Deposits in the amount of 84,266,358 were exposed to custodial eredit risk. These arc 
uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institutions trust 
dcpartment or agent but not in the Towns name. The Town does not havc a policy for custodial 
credit risk. 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Restricted cash at June 30, 2022 is comprised ofthe following: 

Sinking Fund 
Renewal and Replacement Fund 
Reserve Fund 

Total 

Business-Type 
Activities 

$ 4,832 
42,797 
42,797 

$ 90,426 

Cash is restricted in the business-type activities for future payments on long-term debt. 

(4) Receivables 

The following is a summary ofreceivables at June 30, 2022: 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities 

Franchise tax $ 24,892 $ 
Garbage collections 11,467 
Sewer collections 30,412 

Total $ 36,359 $ 

Total 

$ 24,892 
11,467 
30,412 

$ 66,771 

(5) Duefrom Other Governments 

Amounts due from other governments at June 30, 2022, consist ofthe following: 

Governmental 
Activities 

State grant $ 72,371 

Total $ 72,371 
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TOWN OF HENDERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

(6) Capital Assts 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 is as follows: 

Baiance Balance 
07/01/21 Additions Deletions 06/30/22 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land 
Construction in progress 

Other capital assets: 
8uildings 
Autos & cquipment 
Autos & equipment - finaneed purchase 
Streets & improvements 
Parks & facilities 
Office equipment 

Total capital assets 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Buildings 
Autos & equipment 
Autos & equipment - financcd purchase 
Streets & impiovements 
Parks & facilities 
Office equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Govei•nmental activities, 
capital assets, net  

$ 56,000 $ - $ - $ 56,000 
193,225 807,664 - 1,000,889 

228,615 - - 228,615 
599,528 8 8,828 (109,899) 578,457 
108,127 67,380 - 175,507 

1,838,541 - - 1,838,541 
646,381 20,827 667,208 
25,029 - - 25,029 

3,695,446 984,699 (109,899) 4,570,246 

183,987 2,181 - 186,168 
410,446 51,052 (109,899) 351,599 

69,955 20,868 - 90,823 
609,983 47,465 - 657,448 
254,748 21,034 - 275,782 
23,713 146 - 23,859 

1,552,832 42,746 (109,899) 1,585679 

$2,142,614 $841,953 $ - $2,984,567 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Baiance B alance 
07/0 1/21 Additions Deletions 06/30/22 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land 
Other capital assets: 

Sewer plant 
Equipment 
Sewer system 

Total capital assets 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Sewer plant 
Equipment 
Sewer system 

Total accumulated depreciation  

$ 21,600 $ - 

5,714,898 - 
335,285 48,957 

1,050,228 - 

7,J22,011 48,957 

3,158,516 228,382 
304,960 10,552 

84,019 21,005 

3,547,495 ___59,939 

$ $ 21,600 

5,714,898 
3 84,242 

1,050,228 

7,170,968 

3,386,898 
315,512 
105,024 

3,807,434 

Business-type activities, 
capital assets, net $ 3,574,516 $ $ 3,363,534 

Depreciation expense was chargecl to governnentaÍ activities as foliows: 

General government $ 63,347 
police 58,365 

Culture and recreation 21,034 

Total depreciation expense $ 142,746 

(7) Accounts, Salaries, anð Other Payables 

The accounts, salaries, and other payables consisted ofthe following at June 30, 2022: 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

Accounts and other liabilities $ 60,467 $ 8,8 18 $ 69,285 
Payroll liabilities 1,089 41 1 1,500 
Contract payable 26,108 - 26,108 

Retainage payable 38,933 - 38,933 

Total $ 126,597 $ 9,229 $ 135,826 



TOWN OF HENDBRSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

(8) Ad Valorem Taxes 

For the year ended June 30, 2022, taxes of 1.7 1 mills were levied on property with assessed 
valuations totaling $9,004,317. 

Total taxes levied for the year ended June 30, 2022 were $15,397. The taxes are levied and 
assessed around October or November, respectively, of eaeh year. Tax bills are mailed in December, 
become liens on December 31, and are delinquent if unpaid as of March 1. The majority of 
collections occur in the months ofDecember through February. 

(9) Changes in Long-Term Debt 

The following is a summary oflong-term debt transactions ofthe Town ofHenderson for the 
year ended June 30, 2022. The sales tax revenue bonds are paid by the sales tax fund. The other 
revenue bonds relate to business-type activities, which is paid for by the utility fund. The fnanceci 
purchase payments are paid by the general fund. In the past, payinents on long-term debt were paid 
in the same manner. 

Long-term debt, June 30, 2021 
Additions 
Deletions 

Long-term debt, June 30, 2022  

Revenue Vehicle 
Bonds Financed Purchase Total 

$ 1,763,500 $ $ 1,763,500 
67,380 67,380 

(111,12) (23,856) (134,985) 

$ 1,652,371 $ 43,524 $1,695,895 
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Long-term debt at iune 30, 2022 is as follows: 

Revenue bonds: 

$600,000 Sewer Revenue Bonds Series 2000, issued by 
the Louisiana Department ofEnvironmental Quality, 
with an interest rate of3.45% and a maturity date of 
March 1, 2027 

$925,000 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds Series 2016, issued by 
the Town of Henderson, with an interest rate between 1 % 
and 3.9% and a maturity date ofAugust 1, 2031 

USDA Bonds: 

$64 1,000 bond payable, issued by USDA, due in monthly 
installments of$2,930; interest rate of4.50%; full 
maturity at August 2045 

$375,000 bond payable, issued by USDA, due in monthly 
installments of$1,625; interest rate of4.125%; full 
maturity at August 2045 

Total bonds payable 

Vehicle Financed purchase: 

$67,380 financed purchase on (2) 2021 Dodge Durangos, due in 
three annual payments of$23,856; from November 15, 2021 
to November 15, 2023; interest rate of6.35% 

$ 197,000 

666,000 

501,089 

288,282 

$ 1,652,371 

$ 43,524 
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The annual requirements to amortize the outstanding debt as ofJune 30, 2022 are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, 

2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 

2028 - 2032 
2033 - 2037 
2038 - 2042 
2044 - 2046 

Total  

Principal 

$ 136,117 
141,392 
122,93 7 
127,957 
132,023 
503,838 
177,584 
220,799 
133,248 

$ 1,695,895  

Interest 

$ 61,225 
56,672 
51,872 
48,344 
44,627 

165,284 
95,742 
52,528 
6,232 

$ 582,526 

(10) Sales Taxes 

Proceeds of a 1% saies and use tax approved in a special election in June 1972 were 
rededicated in an election held in April of 2016. The proceeds are now dedicated to be used for the 
purpose of constructing, acquiring, improving, operating and maintaining public streets, including 
incidental drainage, parks and recreational facilities, public buildings, and scwage collection and 
disposal system, including land, equipment, fixtures and furnishings for said purposes and, 
maintaining and operating garbage and solid waste collection and disposal facilities. 

Proceeds from the 1% sales and use tax were $582,23 1 for the yeair ended June 30, 2022, 

(11) ParkFund 

On April 13, 1984, the Town Council approved the establishment of a Park Fund. The funcl 
is to be used to account for revenues from park usage fees and expenses for maintaining the park. 

Park usage fees collected for the year endeð June 30, 2022 were $24,480. 
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TOWN OF KENDERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

(12) Compensation ofTown OffiCR15 

A detail ofcompensation paid to Town officials for the year ended June 30, 2022 follows: 

Sherbin Coliette, Mayor (also, see Note 17) 

Leroy Guidry, Chief of Police 

Town Council-

 

Nita Berard 
Judy Broussard 
Bi11 Legrand 
Jody Meche 
William White 

$ 52,800 

$ 43,884 

$ 1,350 
1,350 
1,350 
1,300 
1,350 

$ 6,700 

(]3) Risk Management 

The Town is exposed to risks of loss in the areas of general and auto liability, property 
hazards, and workers compensation. Those risks are handled by purchasing oommercial insuraiice. 
There liave been no sigiiifioant reductions in insurance coverage during the year ended June 3 0, 2022, 
nor have settlements exceeded insurance coverage for the past three years, except that the Town paid 
$37,200 for out-of-pocket expenses on one legal matter in the year ended June 30, 2022. 

(14) FedeiaI Financial Assistance Programs 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by 
the federal grantor agencies. No provision has been made in the financial statements for the 
reimbursement ofany expenditures that may be disallowed as a result ofsuch a review or audit. 

(15) On-behalf Payments 

The Town has recognized $37,5 17 as a revenue and an expenditure for on-behalf salary 
payments made by the state ofLouisiana. 

(16) Commitments and Contingencies 

At June 30, 2022, tlie Town is involved in two ]awsuits c1aiming damages. Management is of 
the opinion that insurance coverage will be adequate to cover any future liability oi settfement. As 
such, no liability has been recorded as ofJune 30, 2022. 
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TOWN OF I{ENDERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

(17) Act 706 — Schedule ofCompensation, Reimbursements, Benefits and Other Payments to Entity Head 

Under Act 706, the Town of Henderson, Louisiana is required to disclose the compensation, 
reimbursements, benefits, and other payments made to the mayor, in which the payments are related 
to the position. The following is a scheclule of payments made to the mayor for the year ended June 
30,2022. 

Entity head: Sherbin Collette, Mayor 

Salary 

Benefits - retirement 
Reimbnrsements - supplemental insurance 

Reimbursements - telephone, etc. 

Total 

$ 52,800 

1,584 
5,630 
1,794 

$ 61,808 

(18) Interfiind Transfers 

[nterfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2022 consisted of $77,589 to the Debt Service 
Nonmajor Fund from the Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund for the principal and interest payments on 
the sales tax revenue bonds and transfers from the General Fund and Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund 
to the Utility Fund of $2,943 anc1 $96,000, respectively, to help fund operations. 

(19) Deferred Compensation Plan 

The Town has a 457(b) defeiTed compensation plan (defined contribution plan). The Plan is 
a voluntary plan aðopted under the provisions of Intema1 Revenue Code 457(b). The plan is 
administered by Valic Financial Advisors, Inc. The Town determines employee participation 
eligibility each plan year. A participant is immediately fully vested. In no event shall the assets of 
this plan revert to the benefit ofthe Town. 

The Town eontributions are discretionary. The Town contributed 3% of eompensation for 
all e[igible employees in the year ended June 30, 2022, which amounted to $9,000. Employee 
contributions ranged from 1% to 7%. Participants can elect any combination of Pre-tax or Roth 
deferral options. 

Bencfits are payable to former employees at the time and in the manner designated by 
participants on a distribution election form. In no event may a participant defer payment of benefits 
later thari April 1 of the calendar year immediately following the year in which participant attains age 
70 Y2 or the date on which participant terminates employment, if later. 
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TOWN OF HENDERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

(20) Risks and Uncertainties 

The COVID-19 outbreak in the United States has caused business disruption through 
mandated closings, reduction of operating hours, or operational restrictions for nonesseiitíal 
businesses, including retail stores, restaurants, personal service businesses and all entertainment 
venues. While the disruption is expected to be temporary, there is stiil uncertainty about the duration 
of and the implications of the closings. The Town of Henderson, Louisiana expects this matter to 
negatively impact availability of resourees and operating results. The financial impact cannot be 
reasonably estimated at this time. 

(21) New AccountingPronouncement 

In June of2017, the ciovernmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issucd Statement No. 
87, Leases. The objective of this stateineiit is to better ineet the information needs of financial 
statemcnt users by improving accounting and fitiancial reporting for leases by governrnents. This 
statement increases the usefulness of governments financial statements by requiring recognition of 
certain lease assets and liabilities for Jeases that previously were classified as operating leases and 
recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the 
contraet. It establishes a single modei for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that 
leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this statement, a Iessee is required 
to recognize a lease liability and an intangibJe right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to 
recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhaneing the relevance and 
consistency of information about governments leasing aetivities. The Town ofHenderson, Louisiana 
adopted this standard in the year ended June 30, 2022. The implementation of this standard had no 
materiai effect on the Town of Hendcrson, Louisianas finaneial statements for the year ended June 
30, 2022. 
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$ 6,000 
3,000 

85,000 

94,000 

62,000 

332,483 

$ 15,733 $ 9,733 
274 (2,726) 

104,260 19,260 

120,267 26,267 

68,295 6,295 

63,240 (269,243) 

$ 6,000 
3,000 

85,000 

94,000 

62,000 

TOWN OF HENDERSON, LOUISIANA 
General FuncI 

l3udgetary Comparison Schcdule 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Ad valorern 
Beei & tobacco taxes 
Fianchise taxes 

Total taxes 

Licenses and perrnits 

Pedet-al gi•ants 

lntergovernrn ental i-even ues: 
Video poker 

State funds: 
State grants 
State i•evenuc sharing 
Supplerncntal pay 

Total statc funds 

Fines and forfeitui-es 

Intei•est incorne 

Miscellaneous incorne 

Total revenues 

Expenditut-es: 

General govei•nrnent: 
Lcgislative 
Judicial 
Executive 
Einance & adrninistrative 

Total general govcrnment 

Public safety 
Debt service: 

principal 
Interest 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) ofi -evenues 
ovel_ cxpenditurcs 

Other financing sout-ces: 

Financecl purchase proceeds 
Operating ti-ansfei-s out 

Total other financing sources 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balance, beginning 

Fund balance, ending  

2,500 2,500 9,278 6,778 

237,000 524,000 496,701 (27,299) 
3,400 3,400 705 (2,695) 

47,000 42,000 37,517 (4,483) 

287,400 569,400 534,923 (34,47) 

1,100,000 2,000,000 2,007,270 7,270 

- - - 4,787 4,787 

29,000 29,000 I1124 l7,876) 

1,574,900 3,089,383 2,8 l 9, i 84 (270, 199) 

6,750 6,750 6,700 50 
15,000 15,000 17,705 (2,705) 

100,392 119,810 116,895 2,915 
240,500 240,500 I 8 1,237 59,263 

362,642 382,060 322,537 59,523 

1,012,636 1,171,636 1,124,818 46,818 

18,138 18,138 23,856 (5,718) 
1,224 1,224 2 1,222 

483,874 931,874 963,872 (31,998) 

1,878,5 l 4 2,504,932 2,435,085 69,847 

(303,6 14) 584,45 1 384,099 (200,352) 

(303,614) 

2227,441 

$ 1,923,827 
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- 67,380 67,380 
(104,153) (2,943) (107,096) 

(104,153) 64,437 (39,716) 

480,298 448,536 (240,068) 

2,563,81 1 2,563,81 l - 

$ 3,044,109 $ 3,012,347 



TOWN OF HENDERSON, LOUISIANA 
Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund 

Budgctary Coinparison Schedule 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Sales and use tax 
Garbage collection fees 
Miscellaneous income 
Investment income 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
General government - 

Finance & administrative 
Sanitation 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues 
over expenditures 

Other financing uses: 
Operating transfers out 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning 

Fund balance, ending  

$ 430,000 $ 600,000 $ 582,231 $ (17,769) 
102,000 102,000 125,704 23,704 

500 500 - (500) 
1,000 _____ 1,000 1,406 406 

533,500 703,500 709,341 5,841 

86,600 95,600 90,777 4,823 
115,000 125,000 126,733 (1,733) 

201,600 220,600 217,510 3,090 

331,900 482,900 491,831 8,931 

(166,000) (176,000) (173,589) 2,411 

165,900 306,900 318,242 11,342 

746,7 1 5 927,972 927,972 - 

$ 912,615 $ 1,234,872 $ 1,246,214 $ 11,342 
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TOWN OF HENDBRSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to the Required supplementary Information 
Foi• the Year Enðed June 30, 2022 

(1) 4gets and Budetary Accounting 

The Town follows these procedures in establishing the buðgetary data reflected in the 
financial statements: 

The Town Clerk prepares a proposeð budget and submits it to the ltIayor and Town Couneil 
no later than fifteen days prior to tlie beginning ofeach fiscal year. 

2. A summary of the proposed budget is published and the public is notified that the proposed 
budget is available for public inspection. At the same time, a public hearing is called. 

A public hearing is he!d on the proposed budget at least ten days after publication ofthe cal! 
for the hearing. 

4. After the holding ofthe public hearing and completion ofall actions necessary to finalize and 
implement the buðget, the budget is adopted through passage of a resolution prior to the 
commencement ofthe fiscal year for which the budget is being adopteð. 

Buðgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one department, program or 
function to another or involving inereases in expenditures resulting from revenues exceeding 
amounts estimated require the approval ofthe Town Council. 

AII budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

7. Budgets for all the funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP). Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the Town 
Council. Such amendments were not material in relation to the original appropriations. 
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TOWN OF KENDERSON, LOUISIANA 

Justice System Funding Schedule - colleetingfDisbursing Schedule 
As Requireð by Act 87 of the 2020 Regular Legislative Session 

Cash Basis Prcsentation 
June 30, 2022 

First Six Month Second Six 
Period Ended Month Period 

12/31/21 Ended 6/30/22 

Beginning Balarìce ofAmounts Coliected (i.e. cash on hand) 

Add: Collections 
Criminai Court CostsÆees 
Crimina1 Fines - Other 
Service/collection Fees (e,g. creðit eard fees, report fees, 3rd party service fees) 

Subtotal Collections 

Less: Disbursements To Governments & Nonprofits: (IvIust include one agency narne 

and one coilectiün iype on each line and rnay require niultipie linesfor the sarne agency f 
rnore ihan one collection iype is applicable. Additional rows rnay be added as necesscuy.) 

Acadiana Crfrninalistics Laboratoy, Court Costs/Fees 
LJepartnient ofHealih & Hospitais, Traumatic Head & Spinal Cord 

Injuiry Trust Fund, Crtminal Court Costs/Fees 
Louisiana Conirnission on Law Enforcernent, Crirninal Court Costs/Fees 
Louisiana Suprerne Court, Crirninal Court Costs/Fees 
Si. AIarttn Parish Crirne Stüppers, Crirninal Couri Costs/Fees 
State ofLouisiana, Trial Court Ivfanagernent Infoiniation Sysiem, 

Crirninai Court Cosis/Fees 

Less: Amounts Retained by Collecting Agency 
Collection Fee for Co11ecting/Disbursing to Others Based on Fixed Amount 
Self Disbursed to Town of Henderson, Criminal Fines, Other 

Less: Disbursements to IndividuaIs/3rd Party Collection or Processing Agencies 
PayiTìents to 3rd Party collectionfProcessing Agencies 

Subtotal DisbursementslRetainage 

Total: Ending Balance ofAmounts Colleeted bot not ÐisbursedtRetained (i.e. cash on 

hand) 

Ending Balance of 1 Partial Fayments Collected but not Disbursed (only applies 

if collecting agency dües not disburse partial payments until fuily collected) - This 

balance is included in the Ending Balance of Arnounts Collected but not 

Disbursed/Retained above, 

Other Information: 

Bnding Ealance of îotal Amounts Assessed but not yet Collected (i. e. receivable 
balance) 
îotal Waivers During the Fiscal Period (i. e. non-cash reduction ofreceivable 
balances, such as tirne served or colnrnunity service) 

179,816 162,071 
835,020 825,238 

46,241 44,270 
- 1,061077 $ I,03L,579 

116,010 $ 109,440 

19,380 18,335 
7,579 7,150 
1,933 1,824 
7,734 7,296 

3,867 3,648 

23,313 14,378 
835,020 825,238 

46,241 44,270 

:.S1,061,077 :r-ì  1,031,579 

- . T_• 

- 
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TOWN OF FENDERSON, LOUISJANA 

Justice System Funding Schedule - Receiving Schedule 
As Required by Act 7 ofthe 2020 Regular Legislative Session 

Cash Basis Presentation 
June 30, 2022 

First Six ,4onth Second Six 
Period Ended Month Period 

12/31)21 Enðed 6/30/22 

Receipts From: (Must inciude one agency name and one collection type - see below - on 
each line and may requfre multiple lines for the same agency. Additional rows may be 

added as necessay.) 

Louisiana Department ofPublic Safety and Corrections, Criminal 
Court Cosis/iees 

Subtotal Receipts 

Ending Balance of Amounts Assessed but Not Received (o,dy applies io ÍJ,ose 
agencies that assess ou behaIfofíheniseIves sucli as eourts) 

$ 2,950 $ 2,175 
$ 2,950 $ - - 2,175 

i-i; 1. -_] 

Collection Types to be used in the 
Civil Fees 
Bond Fees 
Asset Forfeiture/Sale 
Pre-Trial Diversion Program Fees 
criminal Court Costs/Fees 
Crixninal Fines - Contempt 
Criminal Fines - Other 

From: seetion abovc 

Probation/Parole/Supervision Fees 
Service!Collection Fees (e.g. credit carð fees, report fees, 3rd party serviee fees) 
lnterest Earnings on Collecteð Bainnces 
Other (do not include colleciions thatflt  into more specfìc caiegories above) 

43 



OTHER INFORMATION 

44 



(per employee) 10,000 / 40,000 
79,000 

188,000 
500,000 
500,000 
500,000 
500000 

8/10/2022 - 7/15/2023 
6/3/2023 

4/1/2023 
12/8/2022 
12/8/2022 
12/8/2022 
12/8/2022 

TOWN OF HENDERSON, LOtHS[ANA 

Schedule of Insurance in Force 

June 30, 2022 

Coverage Expiration 

Description ofCoverage Amounts Date 

Workrnens compensation - 
Employers liability 

Surety bonds - 
Public employees 
Honesty blanket 

Building and contents 
General IiabiIity 
Law enforcement officers liability 
Public officials errors and omissions liability 
Commercial auto 

$ 500,000 1/1/2023 
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TOWN OF HENDERSON, LOUJSIANA 
Proprietary Fund 

Schedule ofNumber ofSewer Customers and Rates 

June 30, 2022 

Records maintained by the Town indicated the following number of customers were being serviced during the 
month ofJune 30, 2022: 

Customer Type Number 

Residential 556 
Commercial 36 

Residential customers are charged $22 for the first 2000 gallons of water used and $1.50 per 1,000 gallons 
above the first 2,000. Commercial customers are charged $28.75 for the first 7,000 gallons of water used and 

$J.50 per 1,000 gallons after the first 7,000 gallons. 
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TOWN oP HENDERSON, LOUISIANA 
Iroprietary Fund 

Scheclule ofAged Accounts Receivable 

June 30, 2022 

Current $ 29,039 
I -30 days 152 
31-0 days 
1-90 days 126 

> 90 days 1,095 

Total $30,412 
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Champagne & Company, LLC 
Certified Fubltc Accountants 

Russell F. Champagne, CPA 
Periny Angelle Scruggins, CPA 

Shayne M. Breaux, CPA 
Kaylee Champagne Frederic, CPA 

*A Professional Accounting Corporation 

113 East Bridge Stteet 
PO Box 250 

Breaux Bridge, LA ?0517 
Phone: (337) 332-4020 

Fax: (337) 332-2867 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMFLIANCE AND OTHER MATIERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTA UDITING STANDARDS 

The Honorable Sherbin Collette, Mayor 
and Members ofthe Town Council 

Town of Henderson, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally aecepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governrnent Aud/ting Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
businesstype activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of 
Henderson, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 3 0, 2022, and the related notes to the financial 
statemcnts, which collectively comprise the Town of I-Ienderson, Louisianas basic financial statements, and 
have issued our report thereon dated October 6, 2022. 

Report on lnternal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the fmancial statements, we considered the Town of 
Henderson, Louisianas internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a 1asis for designing 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the eireumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of 
Henderson, Louisianas internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effeetiveness of 
the Town ofHenderson, Louisianas internal control. 

A defìciency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned funetions, to prevcnt, or detect 
and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A rnatericil weakness is a deficiency, or a eombination of 
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the 
entitys financial statements will not be prevented, or dctected and corrected, on a timely basis. A signfìcant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficicncies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Member of: 49 Member of: 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might bo material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist 
that were not identified. We identified certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying 
scheclule ofprior and current year audit findings and managements corrective aetion plan as items 2022-001 
and 2022-002 that we consicler to be material weaknesses. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining i•easonable assurance about whether the Town of Henderson, Louisianas 
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the financiai statements. However, providing an opinion on eompliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests diselosed one instance of noncompliance or other matters that is required to be reported 
under Governnent Auditing Standards and which is described in the accompanying schedule of prior anð 
currentyear audit findings and rnanagements corrective action plan as item 2022-003. 

Town ofHenderson, Louisianas Response to Findings 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Town of 
Henderson, Louisianas response to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying 
schedule of prior and current year audit findings and managements corrective action plan. The Town of 
Henderson, Louisianas response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit ofthe 
finaneial statements and, aecordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the seope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, ancl not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entitys 
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in aecordance with 
Government Audíting Standards in considering tlie entitys internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this comrnunication is not suitable for any other purpose. However, under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, 
this report is distributed by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

Chtinipigne & Compiny, LLC 
Certified Public Accountants 

Breaux Briðge, Louisiana 
October 6, 2022 
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TOWN OF HENDERSON, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Prior and Current Year Audit Findings and 
Managements Corrective Action Plan 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

I. • Prior Year Findings: 

Interna1 Control over Finaneial Renorting 

202 1-00 1 — lnadeguate Segregation of Accounting Functions 

Finding: 

The Town did not have adequate segregation of functions wthin the accounting system. 

Status: 

Unresolved. See item 2022-001. 

202 1-002 — Inadeguate Controls over Financial Statement Preparatioj 

Finding: 

The Town does not have a staff person who has the qualifications and training to appiy 
generally accepted accounting principlcs (GAAP) in recording the entitys financial transactions or 
preparing its financial statements. 

Status: 

Unresolved. See item 2022-002. 

Compliance 

There were no items at June 30, 2021. 

Mangement Letter Items 

There were no items at June 30, 2021. 

(continued) 
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TOWN OF HENDERSON, LOUISIANA 

Schedule ofPrior and Current Year Audit Findirigs and 
Managements Corrective Action Plan (continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

11. Current Year Findings and Managements Corrective Action Plan: 

Interna1 Control over Financial Reporting 

2022-001 — Inadeguate Segregation ofAccounting Functions Year Initia11y Occurred Unknown 

Condition and Criteria: 

The Town did not have adequate segregatiori offunctions within the accounting systern. 

Effect: 

This condition represents a material weakness in the internal control oftl1e Town. 

Cause: 

The condition resulted because of the small number of employees in the accounting 
department. 

Recomnlendation: 

No plan is considered necessary due to the faet that it would not be cost effective to 
implement a plan. 

Managements Corrective Action Plan: 

Mr. Sherbin Collette, Pfayor, has determined that it is not cost effective to achieve cornplete 
segregation ofduties within thc aceounting department. No plan is considered necessary. 

2022-002 Inadeguate Controls over Finaricial Statement Preparation; Year Initia1Iy Oceurred — 
Unknown 

Condition and Criteria: 

The Town does not have a staff person who has the qualifications and training to apply 
generally accepted aecounting principles (GAAP) in recording thc entitys financial transactions or 
preparing its financial statements. 

Effect: 

This condition represents a niaterial weakness in tlle internal control of the Town. 

Cause: 

The condition resulted because Town personnel do not have the qualifications and training to 
apply GAAP in recording the entitys financial transactions or preparing the financial statements. 

(continued) 
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TOWN OF HENDERSON, LOUISIANA 

Schedule ofPrior and Current Year Audit Findings and 
Managernent s Corrective Action Plan (continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Recornmendation: 

The Town shouid consider outsourcing this task to its indepeiident auditors and to carefulfy 
review the draft financial statements and notes prior to approving thein and accepting responsibility 
for their contents and presentation. 

Managements Corrective Action Plan: 

Mr. Sherbin Coffette, Mayor, has evaluated the cost vs. benefit of establishing internal 
controls over the preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP and determined that it 
is in the best interest of the government to outsource this task to its independent auditors, and to 
carefully review the draft financial statements and notes prior to approving them and accepting 
responsibility for their contents and presentation. 

Çp1iance 

2{)22-003 — Noncomp1iance with Louisiana Local Government Budget Act; Year Initia11yOcc.urred — 
6/30/2022 

Condition and Criteria: 

Louisiana Revised Statute (LSA-R.S.) 39:1301-13115, known as the Local Government 
Budget Act, requires that the budget be amended when actual revenues and other sources plus 
projeeted revenues and other sources are failing to meet the budgeted revenues and other sources by 
five percent or more. The Town revenues and other sources of the General Fund failed to meet the 
budgeted revenue by approximately 6.57%. 

Effect: 

This condition represents a violation ofthe Louisiana Local Government Budget Act. 

Cause: 

The condition resulted beeause the Town was not aware that revenue received but not 
expended should be recorded as unearned revenue resulting in an overstateinent of budgeted revenue. 
Accordingly, tlie American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) budgeted revenues were overstated by 
$269,243. 

Recommendation: 

The Town should consider revenue received not yet expended when comparing actual 
revenues to budgeted revenues to determine ifthe budget needs to be amended. 
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TOWN OF HENDERSON, LOUISIANA 

Schedule ofPrior and Curtent Year Audit Findings and 
Management s Corrective Action Plan (continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Managements Corrective Action Plan: 

Mr. Sherbin Collette, Mayor, and Mrs. Sue Dupuis, Town Clerk, are now aware that revenue 
received not yet expended may be considered unearned revenue and should not be included as 
budgeted revenue. This will be properly eonsidered in future budgets. 

Management Letter Items 

There are no items reported at June 30, 2022. 
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Phone: (337) 332-4020 

Fax: (337) 3322867 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS REPORT 
ON APPLY1NG AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Managernent oflberville Parish Sheriffand the Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have performed the procedures enumerated beiow on the control and compliance (C/C) areas 
identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditors (LLAs) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) 
for the fiscal period july 1, 202 1 through June 30, 2022. The Ibervi1Ie Parish Sheriffs management is 
responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

The lberville Parish Sheriffs management has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures 
performed are appropriate to meet the intended purpose ofthe engagement, which is to perform specified 
procedures on the C/C areas identified in LLAs SAUPs for the fiscal period July 1, 2021 through June 
30, 2022. Additionally, LLA has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are 
appropriate for its purposes. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures 
performed may not address all the items of interest to a user ofthis report and may not meet the needs of 
all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for determining whether the procedures 
performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

Wrillen Policies and Procedures 

1. Obtain and inspect the entitys written policies and procedures and observe whether they address each 
ofthe following categories and subcategories ifapplicable to public funds and the entitys operations: 

a) .1udgeting, ineluding preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Purchasing, including (I) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the vendor 
list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders; (4) 
controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law; and (5) doeumentation required to be 
maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Disbursements, including processing>  reviewing, and approving. 

No excepîions noted. 
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d) Receipls/Collecfions, inciuding receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, policies and 
procedures should include managernents actions to determine the completeness of all co!lections 
for each type of revenue or agency fund additioiis (e.g. periodic eonfirmation with outside parties, 
reconci]iation to uti]ity billing after cutoff procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number 
sequences, agency fund forfeiture monies confirmation). 

No exceptions noted. 

e) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approva1 process for 
employee(s) rate ofpay or approval and maintenance ofpay rate schedules. 

No exceptions noted. 

f) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and 
conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approva! process, and (5) monitoring process. 

No exceptions noted. 

g) Credif Cards (and debit cirds,fuel cards, P-Cards, ¿fapplicable), including (1) how cards are to 
be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required 
approvers of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the reasonableness of 
fue] card purchases). 

No exceptions noted. 

h) Trave! and Expense Rei,.nbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by 
categoly ofexpense, (3) docurnentation requirements, and (4) required approvers. 

No exceptions ,ioted. 

i) Efhics, including (1) the pi•ohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 42:1 1 11-
1 121, (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible 
ethics violations, and (4) a requirement that docurnentation is rnaintained to demonstrate that al! 
employees and officials were notified ofany changes to the entitys ethics policy. 

No exceptions noted. 

j) Ðebt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA reporting 
requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

ívritten policies andprocedures were oblained and do not address thefunctions noted above. 

k) Information Technology Ðisaster Recovery/Business Continuily, including (1) identification of 
critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a separate physical location 
isolated from the network, (3) periodic testing/verification that backups can be restored, (4) use of 
antivirus software on all systerns, (5) time]y application of a]1 available system and software 
patches/updates, aiid (6) identification of personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover 
operations after a critical event. 

No exceptions noted. 

1) SexualHarassmenl, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (1) agency responsibilities 
and prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual reporting. 

No exceptions noted. 
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Board or Finance Cornmitðee 

The Iberviile Parish Sherff is not required to maintain rninutes; therefore, these steps are not 
applicable. 

2. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the boards 
enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscai period, and: 

a) Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a frequency 
in accordance with the boards enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other equivalent 
docurnent. 

b) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe whether the minutes 
referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund, quarterly 
budget-to-actual, at a minimum, on proprietaiy funds, and semi-annual budget-to-actual, at a 
minimum, on all special revenue funds. Alternately, for ihose entities reporting on the nonprofit 
accounting rnodei, observe that ihe rninutes ieferenced or includedjìnanciai activity reiating to 
publicfunds fthose publicfunds cornprised inore than ]0% oflhe entiiy colleclions during the 
fiscalperiod. 

c) For governmental entîties, obtain the prior year audit report and observe tlie unassigned fuiid 
balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a iiegative ending unassigned fund balance in 
the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meetiiig during the fiscal 
period referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative unassigned fund ba1ance in 
the general fund. 

Bank Reconciliaðions 

3. Obtain a listiiig of entity bank accounts for the fiseal period from management and managements 
representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entitys maiii operating 
account. Select the entitys main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or all 
accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect tlie 
corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for each selected accouiit, and observe that: 

Obtained a iisting of entiiy bank accounts for the fiscal periodfrorn rncinagernent and inanagement s 
representation that the iisting is complete. Manageinent identijìed the entiiy s main operating 
account. Obtained bank staternents and reconciiiations for the rnain operating account and 4 
additional accountsfor one randorn rnonth duiing lhe period. 

a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related 
statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated or electronically logged); 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Bank reconciliatioiis include evidence that a member of management/board member who does 
not liandle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each baiik reconciliation (e.g., 
initialed and dated, electronically logged); and 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Management has documentation reflecting it has researched reconciling items that have been 
outstanding for more than 12 months frorn tlie staternent closing date, ifapplicable. 

No exceptions noted. 



Col!ect!ons (excluding electronicfunds trtnsfers 

4. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money orders 
(casli) are prepared and tnanagements representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 
deposit sitcs (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

Obîained a iisting of deposit sites for the Jìscai period where deposits for cash/checks/inoney ordcrs 
cash,L are prepared and rnanagePnent s representation that the listing is complcte. 

5. For each deposit site selected, obtaiii a listing of coilection 1ocations and managements 
representation tliat the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit 
site (i.e., 5 collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies and procedures 
relatiiig to employee job duties (if no written policies or procedures, inquire of employees about their 
job duties) at each collection location, and observe that job duties are properly segregated at each 
collection location sucli that: 

Obtained a listing ofcollection locationsfor each deposit site and inanagement representation that 
the /isting is coinpiete. Obiained written representation and procedures relating to employee job 
duties. 

a) Employees responsible for cash collections do not share casli drawers/registers. 

At one ofthe lwo cash colieciion ìocations tesied, a cash drawer is shared between ernpioyees. 

b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making bank 
deposits, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciliiig collection documentation 
(e.g., pre-numbered receipts) to tlie deposit. 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Eaeh employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection entries to 
the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is responsible for 
reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit. 

No exceptions noted 

d) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or 
subsidiary ledgers, by ievenue source and/or agency fund additions, are not responsib[e for 
co[lecting cash, unless anotlier employee/official verifies the reconciliation. 

No exceptions noted. 

6. Obtain from management a copy ofthe bond or insurance policy for theft covering all empfoyees who 
have access to cash. Observe the bond or insurance policy for theft was enforced during the fiscal 
period. 

No exceptions noted. 

Randoinly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for procedure #3 under 
Bank Reeoiiciliations above (se[ect the iiext deposit date chronologica[ly if no deposits were made 

on the dates randoinly selected and randomly seleet a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the 
sarne day). Alternately, the practitioner niay use a source docuinent other than bank staternents when 
seiect/ng the deposit dates for testing, such as a cash collect/on log, dally revenue rcport, receipt 
book, etc. Obtain supporting documentation for each ofthe 10 deposits and: 

a) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

No exceptions noted. 
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b) Trace sequentialiy pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
docurnentation to the deposit slip. 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

No exceptions noted. 

d) Observe that the deposit was rnade within one business day of receipt at the eollection location 
(within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the 
deposit is less than $ 1 00 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or drawer). 

No exceptions noted. 

e) Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

No exceptions noted. 

Non-Payroll Disbursemenls (excluding card purcliases/paymenðs, lravel re!rnbursemenls, and pelfy 
cash vurcliases) 

8. Obtain a listing of Ioeations that process payments foi• the fiscal period and lnanagements 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 
5). 

Obtained a iisting of locotions that process payments for the fiscal period and lnanageìnent S 

representation that the iisting is complete. 

9. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listing of those employees involved with non-
payroll purchasing and payment funetions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating to 
employee job duties (ifthe agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire of ernployees about 
theirjob duties), and observe thatjob duties are properly segregated such that: 

Obtained a listing of those enìployees involved with non-payroli purchasing and payrnent functions. 
Obtained written poiicies andprocedures reiciting to ernployeejob duties. 

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, and 
placing an orcler/making the purchase. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) At least two ernployees are involved in processing and approving payrnents to vendors. 

Ony one e,nployee is involved in processing and approvingpayments to vendors. 

c) The employee responsible for proeessing payrnents is prohibited from addinglmodifying vendor 
files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files. 

No exceptions noted. 

d) Either the employeelofficial responsible for signing cheeks mails the payment or gives the signed 
checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

No exceptions noted. 

10. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain the entitys non-payroll disbursement transaction 
popuiation (excluding eards and travel reirnbursements) and obtain managements representation that 
the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each location, obtain supporting 
documentation for each transaction, and: 

Obtained the entity s non-payroil disbursement transaclion population and rnanagernenl s 
representation Ihal lhe populalion is complete. 
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a) Observe that the disbursemerit matched the related original iternized invoice and supporting 
documentatšon indicates deliverabies included on the invoice were received by the entity. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Observe that the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, electronic 
logging) ofsegregation ofduties tested under #9, as applicable. 

No exceptions noted. 

CrecTh! Cards/Debit Cards/Fue/ Cards/P-C,rds 

1 I. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and P-cards 
(cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names ofthe persons who maintained 
possession ofthe cards. Obtain managements representation that the listing is complete. 

Obtainedfrom nianagerneni a listing of ail active credll cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and P-
cards (cards) for the fiscai period, inciuding the card numbers and names of the persons who 
inaintained possession of the cards and obtained incinagement s representation that the iisting is 
complete. 

12. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (oi all cards if less than 5) that 
were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or eombined statement 
for each card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement), obtain supporting 
documentation, and: 

a) Observe whether there is evidenee that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g. original receipts for creditfdebit card purchases, exception reports 
for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing (or electronically 
approved) by someone other than the authorized card holder. [Note: Requiring such approval 
rnay constrain the legal authority of certain public officials (e.g., mayor of a Lawrason Act 
rnunicipality); these instances should not be reported.)J 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

1 inonthiy staternentfor 1 credit card tested had latefees assessed. 

13. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #12 above, excluding fuel cards, 
randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from eaeh statement, and obtain 
supporting docunientation for the transactions (i.e., each card should have 10 transactions subject to 
testing). For each transaction, observe it is supported by (1) an original itemized receipt that 
identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation of the business/public purpose, 
and (3) documentation ofthe individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only). For missing 
receipts, the practitioner should describe the nature of the transaction and note whether management 
had a compensating control to address missing receipts, such as a missing receipt statement that is 
subject to increased scrutiny. 

3 transactions tested did not inchide cin originai iternized receipt that identijìes precisely whai was 
purchased. 
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Travel and Trive!-Related Expense Reirnbursernents (exc!uding card iransactionsì 

14. Obtain from mariagement a Iisting of all travel and travei-reiated expense reimbursements during the 
fiscal period and managements representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. 
Randomly select 5 reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid expense 
documentation ofeach selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For each of 
the 5 reimbursements selected: 

Obtainedfroin inanagelnent a lisiing of all travei and travel-rekited expense reinlbursernents during 
thejìscal period and rnanagernent s representaiion that the iisting or general ledger is cornplete. 

a) If reimbursed using a per diem, observe the approved reimbursement rate is no more than those 
rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Aciministration 
(www.gsa.gov). 

No exceptions noted 

b) lf reimbursed using actual costs, observe the reimbursement is supported by an original itemized 
receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

No exceptions noied. 

c) Observe each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public purpose (for 
meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those individuals 
participating) and other documentation required by written policy (procedure 1 h). 

No exceptions noted. 

d) Observe each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the 
person receiving reimbursement. 

No exceptions noted. 

Coniracis 

15. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, materials and 
supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal period. 
Aiiernalely, the practitioner rnay use an equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor iist. 
Obtain managements representation that tlie listing is complete. Randomly select 5 contracts (or all 
contracts if less than 5) fiom tlie listing, exeluding the practitioners contract, and: 

Obtainedfrorn nzanagerneni a lisiing of ail agreenienis/contracts for professional services, inaterials 
and supplies, ieases, and consiruction activities that were initiaied or renewed during the fiscal 
period and rncinagernent s representation that the listing is cornpiete. 

a) Observe that the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g., solicited 
quotes or bids, advertised), ifrequired by law. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Observe tliat the contract was approved by the governing body/board, ifrequired by policy or law 
(e.g., Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

No exceplions noied. 

c) If the contract was amerided (e.g., change oi•der), observe the original contract terms piovided for 
such an amendment and that ameiidmeiits were made in compliance with the contract terms (e.g., 
ifapproval is required foi any amendment, was approval documented). 

No exceptions noled 
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d) Randomly seiect one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 eoiitracts, obtain the 
supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe the invoice and related 
payment agreed to the terins and conditions ofthe contract. 

¡ conlract tested was not paid in accordance with the ternis and conditìons ofthe contract. 

and Personnei 

1 6. Obtain a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period and inanagernents 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees or officials, obtain related 
paid salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the 
personnel files. 

Obiained a lisiing of employees and officiais eniployed during the jìscai period and rnanagement s 
representatìon that the listing ìs coinpiete. 

17. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees or officials selected 
under #16 above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, and: 

a) Observe that all seleeted employees or officials documented their daily attendance and leave (e.g., 
vacation, sick, cornpensatory). (Note: Generally, officials are not eligible to earn leave and do 
not docuinent their attendance and leave. However, if the official is earning leave according to a 
poiicy and/or contract, the offieia1 should document his/her daily attendance and leave.) 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Observe that supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees or 
officials. 

No exceptìons noted. 

c) Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entitys 
cuinulative leave records. 

No exceptions noted. 

d) Observe that the rate paid to the employees or officials agree to the authorized salary/pay rate 
found within the personnel fïle. 

No excepiions noted. 

1 8. Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received terrnination payments during the fiscal 
period and managetnents representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees or 
officials, obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in managements termination 
payment calculations and the entitys policy on termination payments. Agree the hours to the 
ernployee or offïcials cumulative leave records, agree the pay rates to the emptoyee or offieials 
authorized pay rates in the employee or officials personnel files, and agree the termination paylnent 
to entity poiicy. 

No exceptions noted. 

19. Obtain managements representation that ernployer and ernployee portions of third-party payroll 
related amounts (e.g., payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance prerniums, 
garnishments, workers cornpensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any associated forms have 
been filed, by required deadlines. 

No exceptions noted. 



Etliics 

20. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials frorn procedure # 1 6 under Payroll and Personnel 
above obtain ethics documentation from management, and: 

a) Observe that the documentation dernonstrates each employee/official completed one houi of 
ethics tlaining during the fiscal period. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Observe that the entity rnaintains documentation which demonstrates each employee and official 
were notified ofany changes to the entitys ethics policy during the fiscal period, as applicable. 

The Iberville Parish Sher?ff did not make changes 10 the ethics policy during the fiscai period; 
therefore, this test was not applicabie. 

Debt Service 

2 1. Obtain a Iisting of bonds/notes and other debt instruments issued duiing the fiscal period and 
managernents representation that the listing is complete. Select all debt instruments on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation, and observe State Bond Commission appioval was obtained for 
each debt instiument issued. 

The Iberviile Parish Sherff did not have bonds/notes and other debt instrunients issued during thc 
fiscal period, thcrefore, this test was not ctpplicable. 

22. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscat period and rnanagements 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bondlnote, inspect debt covenants, 
obtain supporting documentation foi the reseive balance and payments, and agree actual reserve 
balances and payments to those required by debt covenants (including contingency funds, short-lived 
asset funds, or other funds required by the debt covenants). 

The Iberviile Parish Sher?ff does not hcrve bonds/notes outstanding al the end of the fiscai period, 
therefore, this test was not applicable. 

Fraud Notice 

23. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal peiiod and 
managements representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the listing, 
obtain supportiiig docurnentation, and observe that the entity reported the misappropriation(s) to the 
legislative auditor and the district attorney ofthe parish in which the entity is domiciled. 

The lberville Parish Sherjff did n01 have rnisappropriations ofpubiic funds and assets during the 
fiscalperiod, therefore, this test was not applicabie. 

24, Observe that the entity has posted, on its premises and website, tlie notice required by R.S. 24:523.1. 
conceining the reporting ofmisappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse ofpublic funds. 

No exceptions noted. 



Inforrnotion Teclinology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuify 

25. Perform the following procedures, verbally discuss the results with management, and report We 
performed the procednre and discussed the resnits with management. 

a) Obtain and inspect the entitys most reeent documentation that it has backed up its critical data (if 
no written documentation, inquire of personnel responsible for backing up critical data) and 
observe tliat such backup occurred within the past week. If backups are stored on a physical 
mediuin (e.g., tapes, CDs), observe evidence that backups are enciypted before being transported. 

1Ve perforrned the proccdure and discussed the results with inanageinent. 

b) Obtain and inspect the entitys most recent documentation that it 1ias tested/verified that its 
backups can be restored (if no written docuinentation, inquire of personnel responsible for 
testing!verifying backup restoration) and observe evidence tliat the test/verification was 
successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

We perforrned the procedure and discussed the results with rnanagernent. 

c) Obtain a listing of the entitys computers currently in use and their related locations, and 
managements representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 computers and 
observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers have current and active 
antivirus sofiware and that the operating system and accounting system software in use are 
currently supported by the vendor. 

We perforrned the procedure and discussed the results with inanagernent. 

Sexua! Horossnienl 

26. Using the 5 randoinly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under Payroll and Personnel 
above, obtain sexual harassinent training documentation from management, and observe the 
documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed at least one hour of sexual harassment 
training during the calendar year. 

No exceptions noted. 

27. Observe that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and cornplaint procedure on its 
website (or in a eonspicuous location on the entitys premises ifthe entity does not have a website). 

No exceplions noted. 

28. Obtain the entitys annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that the 
report was dated on or before February 1, and observe it includes the applicable requirements of R.S. 
42:344: 

Obtained the Iberville Parish Sherffs annuai sexuai harassiiient repoitfor the currentfiscaiperiod, 
noling that the report was dated before Februaiy ]S 

a) Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the training 
requirements; 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency; 

No exceplions noted. 

c) Number ofcomplaints which resuited in a finding that sexual harassment occurred; 

No exceptions noted. 
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d) Numbei of complaints in which the finding of sexual haiassment resulted in discipline or 
corrective action; and 

Nû exceptions noted. 

e) Amount oftime it took to resolve each complaint. 

No exceptions noted. 

We wei•e engaged by the lbeiville Parish Sheriffs management to perform this agreed-upon 
pioceduies engagement and conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standaids 
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of 
Gove,nment Auditing Standards. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review 
engagement, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on 
those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. Accorclingly, we do not express such an opinion or conc!usion. 
Had we performed additional piocedures, other matteis mîght have come to oui attention that would have 
been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of the Ibeiville Parish Sheriffs management and to meet our 
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethicaJ requirements related to oui agreed-
upon proceduies engagement. 

This report is intended soiely to desciibe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas 
identified in the SAUPs, and the resuJt of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control oi 
comp]iance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable foi any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised 
Statute 24:5 13, this ieport is distributed by the LLA as a pub1ic docurnent, 

Cliampagne & Company, LLC 
Ceitified Public Accountants 

Breaux Bridge, Louisiana 
October 4, 2022 
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IBERVILLE PARISH SHERIFF 
Plaquemine, Louisiana 

Managements Response to Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Managements Response to Item: 

lj lberville Parish Sheriffs Office (IPSO) will consider creatiiig a policy, however, the 
lease was receiitly paid off and IPSO is iiot expected to etiter into another lease or issue 
any other type ofdebt in the near future. 

5a Although ernployees in the courthouse share a cash drawer, there are compensatiiig 
controls over the cash drawer that make rnanagement comfortable with sucli. No c!ianges 
deemed necessaiy. 

9b IPSO does require Sheriff approval of invoices greater than $5,000 that are non-recurring 
and non-payroil related. No other clianges deemed necessary at this time. 

12b Credit card payments were previousty being mailed; the process has changed to inake 
credit card payments online to avoid potential mailing delays. In addition, payrnents may 
be delayed ifcertain support for charges are not received promptly. 

13 Tliese traiisactions were for recurring monthly charges; a rnonthly invoice is iiot available 
for these types oftransactions. 

1 5d This invoice was not received by IPsO from the vendor until 6 moiitlis after the date of 
the invoice. Once the invoice was received, it was prornptly paid. 
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